
 

 

 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 
November 10, 2015 

5:01 PM @ CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak” card to the Recording 

Secretary. 

II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 

III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held October 13, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. 
2 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission special meeting held October 28, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. 

 
IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by Diane 
Reid-Goolsby; Debra Reid-Wilbarger; and Daniel Joshua Reid, from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” 
Mixed Use (15 du/ac; 1.00 FAR); and recommend approval to transmit to the Florida Department of 
Economic Opportunities for review, for property located west of Plymouth Sorrento Road, south of West 
Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #s: 13-20-27-0000-00-010; 13-20-27-0000-00-031; 13-20-27-0000-00-039; 13-
20-27-0000-00-040; 13-20-27-0000-00-041; 13-20-27-0000-00-042; 13-20-27-0000-00-043; 13-20-27-
0000-00-044; 13-20-27-0000-00-049) 

 
2. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by the City of 

Apopka, from Parks/Recreation to Industrial, for property located north of East Cleveland Street, west of 
Sheeler Avenue. (Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-080) 

 
3. CHANGE OF ZONING – Owned by the City of Apopka, from PR (Parks/Recreation) to I-1 (Restricted 

Industrial), for property located north of East Cleveland Street, west of Sheeler Avenue. (Parcel ID #: 15-
21-28-0000-00-080) 

 
4. CHANGE OF ZONING/ MASTER SITE PLAN – Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions LLC, owned by Raynor 

Apopka Land Management, LLC; Engineer is American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E., from 
“County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2), for property located at 100 
& 126 Hermit Smith Road. (Parcel ID #s: 01-21-27-0000-00-026; 01-21-27-0000-00-080) 

 

1



Page 2 
 

 

5. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by 
Technology Property, LLC; applicant is Robinson Forges Realty International, c/o Lou Forges, from 
“County” Rural (0-1 du/5 ac) to “City” Commercial (Max. FAR 0.25), for property located west of Clarcona 
Road, south of West Keene Road. (Parcel ID #s: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; 27-21-28-6024-00-006; 27-21-28-
6024-00-007) 

 
6. CHANGE OF ZONING – Owned by Technology Property, LLC; applicant is Robinson Forges Realty 

International, c/o Lou Forges, from “County” P-D (ZIP) to “City” C-3 (Wholesale Commercial), for property 
located west of Clarcona Road, south of West Keene Road. (Parcel ID #s: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; 27-21-
28-6024-00-006; 27-21-28-6024-00-007) 

 
7. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT MASTER SITE PLAN - 1

ST
 AMENDMENT – RaceTrac/AutoZone – 

Owned by RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc.; applicant is AutoZone Stores, LLC; engineer is CPH Engineering, 
Inc., c/o Joshua D. Lockhart, P.E., property located north of U.S. 441 (a.k.a. Orange Blossom Trail) and 
east of Errol Parkway. (Parcel ID No. 05-21-28-0000-00-031)  
(Item to be continued to the Special Planning Commission meeting to be held Tuesday, November 24, 
2015, at 5:01 p.m.)  

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 

1. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – COPART - Owned by Copart, Inc.; engineer is Burkett 
Engineering, c/o William E. Burkett, P.E., property located at 3351 West Orange Blossom Trail. (Parcel ID 
#: 01-21-27-0000-00-032)  
(Item to be continued to the Special Planning Commission Meeting to be held Tuesday, November 24, 
2015, at 5:01 p.m.)  
 

VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 

VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT: 

 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

2



Page 3 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held October 13, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. 
  

3



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 13, 2015, 
AT 5:01 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, Jeremiah Jaspon, Linda Laurendeau, and 
Pam Toler 
 
ABSENT: James Greene, Robert Ryan, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  R. Jay Davoll, P.E. - Public Services Director/Community Development 
Director, David Moon, AICP - Planning Manager, Rogers Beckett - Special Projects Coordinator, Kyle 
Wilkes - Planner II, Robert Sargent - Public Information Officer, Andrew Hand, Esq., Steve Thomes, 
Carmen Hunter, Ed Velazquez, George Kramer, Rob Cash, Sandy Brower, Suzanne Kidd, Marc Stehli, 
Kent Brower, Jose Molina, Richard Berglund, Alice Nolan, Teresa Sargeant, Angie McCain, and 
Jeanne Green – Community Development Department Office Manager/Recording Secretary. 
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Mr. Foster called the meeting to order and asked for a moment of 
silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR PRO TEM: 
 
MOTION: Melvin Birdsong made a motion to appoint Tony Foster as the Chair Pro Tem for 

the October 13, 2015, Planning Commission meeting and Linda Laurendeau 
seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, 
Jeremiah Jaspon, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam Toler (5-0). 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Chair Pro Tem Foster asked if there were any corrections or additions 
to the special meeting minutes of August 25, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. minutes.   
 
Motion:      Melvin Birdsong made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes 

from the special meeting held on August 25, 2015, meeting at 5:01 and seconded by 
Pam Toler. Aye votes were cast by Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, Jeremiah 
Jaspon, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam Toler (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
1. Jay Davoll, P.E., announced his transition to the position of Public Services Director and has 

relocated to the Public Services compound on Cleveland Street.  He stated that in the interim of 
finding a replacement for the Community Development Director position he has been asked to 
continue in that capacity in a limited manner. 

 
2. David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated that the applicant for Item 3 on the agenda, Ever 

Meadow Small Scale Land Use Amendment, has requested a continuance for this item.  Further 
discussion to follow later in the meeting. 

 
SWEARING-IN - Mr. Hand swore-in staff, the petitioners, and affected parties. 
 
MINOR FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – PLYMOUTH SOUTH POWER SUBSTATION - 
Chair Pro Tem Foster stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Minor Final Development 
Plan for the Plymouth South Power Substation owned by Duke Energy.  The applicant is Poulos & 
Bennett, LLC, and the property is located at 620 Superior Commerce Boulevard.   
 
Chair Pro Tem Foster asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke. 
 
 

4



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 25, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 

 

 2 

Chair Pro Tem Foster asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  None. 
 
Staff Presentation:  David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated this is a request to recommend 

approval of the Minor Final Development Plan for the Duke Energy Plymouth South Power 

Substation.  The owner/applicant is Duke Energy, Inc. and the engineer is Poulos & Bennett, LLC, c/o 

Ricardo A. Ortiz, P.E.  The property is located at 620 Superior Commerce Boulevard (south of West 

Orange Ave, east of S.R. 429 and west of Superior Commerce Boulevard).  The land use is Industrial 

and the zoning is I-1.  The existing use is vacant land and the proposed use is a power substation.  The 

tract size is 2.16 +/- acre (94,089 sq. ft.) and the building size is 1,051 sq. ft. 

 

This proposed Power Substation is located in the heart of Apopka’s planned industrial center at S.R. 

429/Wekiva Parkway.  Proximity of electrical substation is an important consideration when industrial 

businesses are considering site selection for a new facility.  Closer proximity to a power station results 

in fewer interruptions caused breaks in electric line.  It is needed to serve future new industrial and 

commercial uses near the S.R. 429 interchange with U.S. 441. 

 

The Duke Energy - Plymouth South Power Substation - (Minor) Final Development Plan proposes a 

High Density Substation with 4 feeders and 3 transmission lines.  A preliminary development plan is 

not required for projects less than 10,000 square feet.   

 

The site will be serviced by an on-site irrigation well and on-site stormwater management system 

designed according to standards set forth in the Land Development Code. 

 

The site has a standard ten (10) foot wide side-yard landscape buffer with a twenty-five (25) foot wide 

landscape buffer along Superior Commerce Boulevard. The applicant has provided a detailed 

landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The planting materials and irrigation system design are 

consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.  There is no 

tree bank mitigation fee payment required for this site.  

 

A total of 3 parking spaces are provided for utility vehicles servicing the site; with access occurring 

from a driveway connecting to Superior Commerce Boulevard. 

  

Waiver Request:  The applicant is requesting a waiver from section 4.6 and 4.7 of the Development 

Design Guidelines; which does not allow chain link or barb wire in areas visible from the road and 

requires utility equipment to be totally screened from view of principal streets.  Where fences are 

intended to screen areas from public view, they shall be constructed of brick, masonry, wrought iron, 

stone or other decorative materials.  

 

Response: The applicant is proposing a 7’ high chain link fence with 3 strands of barb wire.  The 

chain link fence is proposed for the following safety reasons: 1) to allow visual 

sightlines into the facility in case of injury to personnel; and 2) to promote air 

circulation through the yard to reduce temperature inside the yard for personnel. 

 

 Staff does not object to this waiver request. 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Duke Energy – Plymouth South 

Power Substation Final Development Plan and does not object to the waiver request, subject to the 

findings of the staff report. 

5



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 25, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 

 

 3 

 

The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to advise the City Council to 

approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code. 
 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation:  Marc Stehli, Poulos & Bennett, LLC, 2602 East Livingston Street, Orlando, 
stated that they are in concurrence with the staff recommendations. 
 
In response to a question by Ms. Toler, Rob Cash, Duke Energy, 3300 Exchange Place, Lake Mary, 
stated that, while he was not familiar with the substation located at the intersection of Rock Springs 
Road and Welch Road, this substation would be small and not as tall as what Ms. Toler described. 
 
Affected Party Presentation: None. 
 
Chair Pro Tem Foster opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chair 
Pro Tem Foster closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Pam Toler made a motion to recommend approval of the Minor Final 

Development Plan and waiver request for the Plymouth South Power Substation, 
owned by Duke Energy and located at 620 Superior Commerce Boulevard.  
Jeremiah Jaspon seconded the motion.  Aye votes were cast by Melvin Birdsong, 
Tony Foster, Jeremiah Jaspon, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam Toler (5-0). (Vote 
taken by poll.) 

 
SUBDIVISION REPLAT – COOPER PALMS COMMERCE PARK FOR LOTS 7 & 9 - Chair 
Pro Tem Foster stated this is a request to recommend approval of the subdivision replat of Cooper 
Palms Commerce Park for Lots 7 & 9 owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, Inc., c/o Michael 
Cooper.  Property located south of 1st Street, north of 3rd Street, east of South Bradshaw Road, and 
west of South Hawthorne Avenue. 
  
Chair Pro Tem Foster asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No 
one spoke. 
 
Chair Pro Tem Foster asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  None. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Moon stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Cooper Palms 

Commerce Park Replat of Lots 7 & 9.  The owner/applicant is Property Industrial Enterprises, Inc., c/o 

Michael Cooper.  The surveyor is Nieto-Whittaker Surveying, LLC, c/o Ralph A. Nieto, P.S.M.  The 

property is located south of 1st Street, east of South Bradshaw Road, and west of S. Hawthorne 

Avenue.  The future land use is Industrial and the zoning is Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-1).  

The existing use is a platted subdivision for industrial, commercial and office uses.  The proposed us is 

a replat of a portion of the Cooper Palms Commerce Park affecting Lots 7, 9, 10, 11, 26 and Tracts A 

& B.  The tract size is 4.95 +/- Acres. 
 
Owners of lots within the Cooper Palms Commerce Park Plat request approval of a modification to the 

existing plat to address changes to their development plans for the property.  The change is necessary 

to accommodate a business that desires to locate\expand within the City of Apopka.  Changes to the 

plat are not substantial and involve the shifting of lot lines to accommodate proposed development of 

6



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 25, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 

 

 4 

lots 7,9,10, 11, 26 and portions of tracts A & B.  All property owners affected by the modification are 

applicants of the replat application.  Development of all lots appearing within the Cooper Palms 

Commerce Park Replat 7 & 9 are subject to zoning and development standards set forth in the assigned 

PUD zoning (Ordinance No. 2346). 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Cooper Palms Commerce Park 

Replat of Lots 7 & 9, subject to corrections of scrivener errors on the Plat and the findings of the staff 

report. 

 

The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to advise the City Council to 

approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code. 
 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 
Petitioner Presentation:  None. 
 
Affected Party Presentation: None. 
 
Chair Pro Tem Foster opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chair 
Pro Tem Foster closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Melvin Birdsong made a motion to recommend approval of the Cooper Palms 

Commerce Center Replat of Lots 7 & 9, owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, 
LLC, c/o Michael Cooper and located south of 1st Street, east of South Bradshaw 
Road, and west of S. Hawthorne Avenue, subject to the correction of scrivener 
errors on the plat and the findings of the staff report.  Jeremiah Jaspon seconded 
the motion.  Aye votes were cast by Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, Jeremiah 
Jaspon, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam Toler (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EVER 

MEADOW – Mr. Moon stated that, as mentioned at the beginning of the meeting, the applicant has 

requested that this item be continued until the December 8, 2015, Planning Commission meeting.  Staff 

does not object to this request.  The applicant is aware that, due to the timing, they will be required to 

re-notice the surrounding property owners as if this were a new application.   
 
Chair Pro Tem Foster opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chair 
Pro Tem Foster closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Melvin Birdsong made a motion to continue the Comprehensive Plan – Small Scale 

Future Land Use amendment for Ever Meadow until the December 8, 2015, 
Planning Commission meeting.  Linda Laurendeau seconded the motion. 

 
Richard Berglund, 1220 Legg Drive, Apopka, expressed his concern regarding this property going 
from a residential category to commercial and requested information on what the applicant was 
planning for this property. 
 
Chair Pro Tem Foster re-opened the meeting for public hearing.    
 
Mr. Moon stated that this request, at the time it is presented at the December 8th meeting, will only be 
the consideration of the future land use change.  There will be no site plans presented that would be 

7



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 25, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 

 

 5 

associated with this property.  He explained that future land use designations are more general and 
broad in nature.  Zoning categories are more specific and the zoning change for this property will have 
a separate hearing. 
 
George Kramer, Littlejohn Engineering Associates, Inc., 1615 Edgewater Drive, Orlando, stated that 
they are still considering what uses will be most appropriate for the site.  He stated that they are 
looking for to working with the neighbors to ensure that whatever use is designated to the property will 
be an appropriate one. 
 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chair Pro Tem Foster closed the public hearing.  
 
Restated Motion:   Melvin Birdsong made a motion to continue the Comprehensive Plan Small 

Scale Future Land Use amendment for Ever Meadow until the December 8, 
2015, Planning Commission meeting.  Linda Laurendeau seconded the 
motion.  Aye votes were cast by Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, Jeremiah 
Jaspon, Linda Laurendeau, and Pam Toler (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
OLD BUSINESS: None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  None.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
Tony Foster, Chair Pro Tem 
 
 
 
 
 
R. Jay Davoll, P.E. 
Community Development Director 
 
 

8



Page 9 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission special meeting held October 28, 2015, at 5:01 p.m. 
  

9



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 28, 2015, 
AT 5:01 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James Greene, Robert Ryan, Melvin Birdsong, Tony Foster, and Linda Laurendeau 
 
ABSENT: Jeremiah Jaspon, Pamela Toler, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  David Moon, AICP - Planning Manager, , Debbie Horton, and Jeanne Green – 
Community Development Department Office Manager/Recording Secretary. 
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Chairperson Greene called the meeting to order and asked for a moment of 
silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
SWEARING-IN - Mr. Hand swore-in staff, the petitioners, and affected parties. 
 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – PLYMOUTH SOUTH POWER SUBSTATION - Chairperson Greene 
stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Final Development Plan for Cooper Palms Commerce Park, 
Lot 9 – Fun Planners, owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, Inc., c/o Michael Cooper and located south of 1st 
Street, north of 3rd Street, east of South Bradshaw Road and west of South Hawthorne Avenue. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No one spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge regarding 
this item.  None. 
 
Staff Presentation:  David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated this is a request to recommend approval of the 
Final Development Plan for the Cooper Palms Commerce Center, Lot 9 – Fun Planners.  The owner/applicant is 
Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael R. Cooper and the engineer is Ali Tehrani, P.E.  The property 
is located at 330 and 340 Cooper Palms Parkway (south of 1st Street and east of Bradshaw Road).  The land use 
is Industrial and the zoning is Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-1).  The existing use is vacant land and the 
proposed use is an industrial warehouse (35,375 sq. ft.) with an office complex (3,800 sq. ft.).  The tract size is 
2.64 +/- acre and the building size is 39,175 sq. ft. 
 
The Fun Planners - Final Development Plan proposes a 39,175 square foot industrial warehouse and office 
complex extending 51 feet in height.  The property has a PUD zoning that allows the maximum building height 
not to exceed 75 feet.   
       
A total of 89 parking spaces are provided, of which four are reserved as a handicapped parking space.  Access to 
the site is provided by a private roadway Cooper Palms Parkway.   
 
Design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development Design Guidelines.  
   
Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by a master stormwater drainage system.  The master 
stormwater management system is designed according to standards set forth in the Land Development Code.  
 
The applicant is providing a twenty-five foot landscape buffer with a six-foot high masonry wall along the 
southern boundary of the site abutting the residential area. The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and 
irrigation plan for the property. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-
efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   
 
Total inches on-site: 0 
Total number of specimen trees: 0 
Total inches removed 0 
Total inches retained: 0 
Total inches required:      345 
Total inches replaced: 345 
Total inches post development: 345 
10



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON OCTOBER 28, 2015, AT 5:01 P.M. 

 

2 

 

 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Final Development Plan for Fun Planners 
owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael R. Cooper, subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 
Recommend approval of the Final Development Plan for Fun Planners owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, 
LLC, c/o Michael R. Cooper, subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a 
part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation:  In response to a question by Mr. Foster, Debbie Thornton, Michael R. Cooper 
Construction, 517 Cooper Oaks Court, Apopka, stated that Fun Planners have sold their building at 626 Cooper 
Industrial Parkway to Collins Manufacturing because they wanted a larger building which could be 
accommodated at Cooper Palms Commerce Park. 
 
In response to questions by Mr. Ryan, Ms. Thornton stated that Fun Planners plan corporate events and themed 
parties.  They setup the entire event, hose, and cleanup after the event.  They will have offices and a very large 
storage warehouse with loading docks.  The items such as tables, chairs, props, etc. will be stored in the 
warehouse.  They currently have 10 to 12 fulltime employees and will use as many as 80 outside contractors for 
their events.  Within the next couple of years they are looking to employee 15 plus fulltime employees.  There 
will be no public access to the building.  The construction meets or exceeds City Codes. 
 
Affected Party Presentation: None. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson Greene 
closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Robert Ryan made a motion to recommend approval of the Final Development Plan for 

Cooper Palms Commerce Park, Lot 9 – Fun Planners, owned by Property Industrial 
Enterprises, Inc., c/o Michael Cooper and located south of 1st Street, north of 3rd Street, east 
of South Bradshaw Road and west of South Hawthorne Avenue.  Melvin Birdsong seconded 
the motion.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Robert Ryan, Melvin Birdsong, Tony 
Foster, and Linda Laurendeau (5-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
OLD BUSINESS: None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  None.  
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:11 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
James Greene, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
R. Jay Davoll, P.E. 
Community Development Director 

 

11



Page 12 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by Diane 

Reid-Goolsby; Debra Reid-Wilbarger; and Daniel Joshua Reid, from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” 
Mixed Use (15 du/ac; 1.00 FAR); and recommend approval to transmit to the Florida Department of 
Economic Opportunities for review, for property located west of Plymouth Sorrento Road, south of West 
Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #s: 13-20-27-0000-00-010; 13-20-27-0000-00-031; 13-20-27-0000-00-039; 13-
20-27-0000-00-040; 13-20-27-0000-00-041; 13-20-27-0000-00-042; 13-20-27-0000-00-043; 13-20-27-
0000-00-044; 13-20-27-0000-00-049) 

  

12



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING     DATE:  November 10, 2015 
          ANNEXATION     FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL     EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:         Vicinity Map 
          Adjacent Zoning Map 
          Adjacent Uses Map 
          WPIVP1 Map 
          WPIVP Character Districts 
          Comp Plan Objectives 
          Interlocal Agreement 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – REID-GOOLSBY & REID-WILBARGER 

     
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 13-20-27-0000-00-010; -031; -039; - 040; -041; -042; -043; -044;-049 
 

Request:   LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
    FROM:    “COUNTY” RURAL (0-1 DU/10 AC)  
    TO:      “CITY” MIXED USE (15 DU/AC; 1.00 FAR) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Diane Reid-Goolsby, Debra Reid-Wilbarger & Daniel Joshua Reid, c/o Diane Reid-

Goolsby 

 

LOCATION: West of Plymouth Sorrento Road, south of West Kelly Park Road 

 

EXISTING USE: Single-family homes, manufactured home, church, grazing/pasture land and 

accessory structures. 

 

CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 

 

PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  None 
 

PROPOSED ZONING: TBD 

 

TRACT SIZE:   44.26 +/- acres  

 

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 

DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 4 Units 

    PROPOSED: TBD (Max. 664 dwelling units & 1,927,965 sq. ft.) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief  
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\COMPREHENSIVE PLAN\2015\Goolsby & Wilbarger\Planning Commission 11 10 15\1 Reid-Goolsby_Reid-Wilbarger LS FLUM 

                                                 
1 WPIVP – Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan 

13



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on May 20, 2015, 
through Ordinances 2423 – 2432.  Presently, the subject properties do not have a “city” future land use designation 
or “city” zoning classification assigned. The applicant requests a future land use designation of “city” Mixed Use. 
 
The subject properties, adjacent to the future Wekiva Parkway and the Wekiva Parkway/Kelly Park Road 
interchange, must comply with various Objectives 18 – 20 and related policies within the Future Land Use 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  The applicant is requesting the Mixed Use future land use designation to be 
compliant with these objectives and policies, and market the property mixed-use development.    
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Mixed 
Future Land Use designation. If the proposed future land use designation is adopted, the site would require a 
change of zoning consistent with the Mixed Use future land use designation, as well as be consistent with Policies 
18.2 of the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element, the site must comply with the intent and standards set 
forth in a form-based code/overlay for properties within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan as described 
in Policies 18.3 and 20.4 listed below.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land 
Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support a Mixed Use FLUM designation 
at the subject site:  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of residential, 
office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional and public facilities uses to serve the residential 
and non-residential needs of special areas of the City.  The mix of land uses may occur on a single parcel 
or multiple parcels … 
 
The designation of a mixed use category may occur only in certain areas of the city, including “land 
anticipated for inclusion within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use Plan…” These properties are 
within the 1-mile radius of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange depicted on the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan Map located within the Future Land Use Element of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2. Policy 18.1 The City shall implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, which guides the 
location of a range of uses, such as residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, public and 
institutional, at various densities and intensities around the proposed interchange. 
 
The proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation allows for residential densities and non-residential 
uses and intensities to implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, consistent with Objective 
18 and related policies.  
 

3. Policy 18.2 Prior to rezoning any property within a one-mile radius of the interchange Study Area, the 
City shall amend its LDC to incorporate development standards that will implement the Vision Plan. 
 
This future land use amendment does not include a corresponding proposed zoning category because the 
City has yet to adopt development standards or form-based code consistent with this policy.  Future 
densities/intensities and design character for the subject properties will be regulated at the time of rezoning 
once Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan design standards and form-based code are adopted.   
 

4. Policy 20.4 Prior to approving the first development plan with the Wekiva Parkway Interchange vision 
Plan Area, the City shall adopt the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Form-Based Cod establishing the design 
and development standards for the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area. 
 
The subject properties will be required to comply with the above policy should the development submit a 
development plan to ensure consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan. 
 14



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

5. Policy 20.9 Development within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area shall be assigned a Mixed-
Use Interchange future land use designation and shall accomplish an overall mix of residential and non-
residential uses as outline in Policy 3.1.r.  Assignment of the Mixed-Use Interchange Land Use future land 
use designation shall require an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The applicant’s request for a Mixed Use future land use designation is consistent with this policy, as well 
as the intent of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan area, which intends to concentrate a mixture 
of land uses with varying densities and intensities within one mile of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange. 
 

6. Policy 20.3.  The annexation, land use change, and subsequent development of lands located within the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area for Apopka and the Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan Overlay 
for the County shall be consistent with the adopted Interlocal Agreement between Orange County and the 
City of Apopka regarding Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan Overlay. 

 
Transportation Element 
 

1. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as mixed-use 
land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, short trip lengths and balanced trip 
demand. 
 
The Mixed Use future land use designation allows for a mixture of land use types such as residential and 
non-residential, which promotes shorter trip lengths, concentrated development to reduce travel demand. 

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:    After the transmittal hearing, the applicant will submit to Orange County 
Public School an application for school capacity determination.  Prior to the adoption hearing for the Future Land 
Use amendment, the applicant must obtain an approved school capacity determination or school capacity 
mitigation agreement from the Orange County School Board.  Affected schools: Apopka High School; Wolf Lake 
Middle School; and Zellwood Elementary. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The City 
properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2015. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 10, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 30, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 
TBD – Ordinance Heading & Public Notice ¼ Page Ad w/Map 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use from 
“County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” Mixed Use for the property owned by Diane Reid-Goolsby, Debra Reid-
Wilbarger & Daniel Joshua Reid, subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

15



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North 

(County) 

Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Nursery and S.R. 429 (future Wekiva Parkway 

alignment and interchange) 

East (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Single-family and manufactured homes 

South (City 

and County) 

“County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) and “City” 

Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 

“County” A-1 and 

“City” A-1 (ZIP) and 

A-2 (ZIP) 

Vacant, Single-family homes & grazing 

West (City) Mixed Use A-1 (ZIP) S.R. 429 (future Wekiva Parkway alignment) 

 
The property has access from the east from Plymouth Sorrento Road.  
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The subject properties are located within the one-mile radius of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area 
boundary, making a request for a Mixed Use future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
policies listed above, as well as the general future land use character of the surrounding area. 
 
The properties are bordered to the west by the proposed alignment for the Wekiva Parkway, as well as within ¼-
mile proximity to the Wekiva Parkway Interchange at West Kelly Park Road.  Parcels to the west and northwest 
of the subject properties have a future land use designation of Mixed Use, several of which are located within the 
Kelly Park Crossing Development of Regional Impact (DRI). 
 
Properties to the east and south of the subject properties include a mixture of single-family and agricultural uses.  
Many of these properties, however, area also located within the one-mile radius of the Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange Area, and would also be subject to the aforementioned policies that promote a mixed-use future land 
use designation.  
 
The proposed Mixed Use future land use designation is consistent with the general future land use character of 
the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on May 
20, 2015.  The subject property is located within the “Northwest Area” of the JPA.  The proposed FLUM 
Amendment request for a change from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” Mixed Use is consistent with the 
terms of the JPA (Second Amendment).  Diane Reid-Goolsby, Debra Reid-Wilbarger & Daniel Joshua Reid, c/o 
Diane Reid-Goolsby, is the applicant of the proposed future land use amendment and proposed change of zoning 
for the Property, and has been notified of the hearing schedule.   
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 
the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 
 
 

16



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are  karst features on this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property is used currently for single-family and 
manufactured homes, as well as grazing and a church.  The dominant soil, #5 Candler Fine Sand, and has a 0-12 
percent slope. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: These properties were 
annexed into the City on May 20, 2015. Based on the adoption of the JPA, the size of the property, and the 
proposed land use change, the amendment will increase the population if redeveloped. 
  
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: 4 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 10 persons 
PROPOSED: 664 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 1,765 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will provide housing to accommodate a year 2030 projected future 
population of 125,328 that is the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required for 
developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary Development 
Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and submit a habitat 
management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPCD / Capita;  81 
GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  784 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  418,339 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A GPCD/Capita;  
 177 GPD/Capita 

 17



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
 City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    840 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   525,033 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes   
 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  4 lbs./cap/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  2 lbs./day/1000 SF 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
 

 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None  
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm event.  
 

18



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.03 AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  5.295 AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None.    Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development 
plans to provide parkland and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the 
new development. 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 
  

19



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

Diane Reid-Goolsby & Debra Reid Wilbarger 
Property Owner 
44.26 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural (0 – 1 du\10 ac) 

To: “City” Mixed Use  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
To: To Be Determined Later 

Parcel ID #s:  13-20-27-0000-00-010; -031; -039; - 040; -041; -042; -043; -044;-049 
 
 

VICINITY MAP  

 

\   

SUBJECT PROPERTIES 

20



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

21



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

\  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
22



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 
 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

\  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 23



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015  

REID-GOOLSBY, REID-WILBARGER & REID – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 12 
 

 

 

 

 

Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan 

(Policy 20.5 - Future Land Use Element) 
 

 
 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



Page 51 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by the City of 

Apopka, from Parks/Recreation to Industrial, for property located north of East Cleveland Street, west of 
Sheeler Avenue. (Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-080) 

  

51



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  November 10, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: CITY OF APOPKA – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – 
ADMINISTRATIVE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 15-21-28-0000-00-080 
 

Request:   COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE 
    FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
    FROM: PARKS/RECREATION 
    TO:  INDUSTRIAL (0.60 FAR) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT/OWNER: City of Apopka 
 
LOCATION: North of East Cleveland Street, west of Sheeler Avenue 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING: PR  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Light industrial  
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: I-1 (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment request is being processed along 

with a request to change the Zoning Map designation from PR to I-1.) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.95 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 0 Units 
    PROPOSED: 260,053 Sq. Ft. 
 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDS\2015\City of Apopka\Planning Commission 11 10 15 
 
 
 

 52



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by 

the City of Apopka.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed 

as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Industrial is compatible with the designations assigned to 

abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 9.95 acres. The property owner intends to use 

the site for eventual light industrial development. Access to the site will occur from a road or driveway connecting 

to East Cleveland Street through an abutting City-owned property, unless another access is created to connect to 

13th Street. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 

the Industrial Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed I-1 Zoning classification.  Site development 

cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning classification and, 

therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 30, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from Parks/Recreation to Industrial (max FAR 0.60) 
for the property owned by the City of Apopka. 
 

Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

53



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

                                                                                                                                                                          

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) 

and Industrial (max FAR 0.60) 

IND-2/IND-3 

(ZIP) 

Light Industrial 

East (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) R-l Vacant 

South (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) PUD Vacant 

West (City) Parks/Recreation PR Vacant (City training site) 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of light 
industrial uses.  The property lies north of East Cleveland St and east of Clarcona Rd. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 

October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study Area, the 

subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 

mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 

the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 

Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features present on this property. 

 

 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts E Cleveland St.  The vegetative 

communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and the 

terrain has a 5-12 percent slope. 

 

 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.l Industrial 

Future Land Use designation. 

 

 54



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 

designation for the property is Industrial (max FAR 0.60).  Based on the housing element of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   

 

CALCULATIONS: 

ADOPTED (City designation): N/A 

PROPOSED (City designation): N/A 

 

 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 

is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ;   81 GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  0 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  39,008 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 GPD/Capita; 

 177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  0 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  52,011 GPD 

 
55



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: No           
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  N/A lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  3 lbs./1000 sq. ft. 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  No 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  56



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  N/A AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

57



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

City of Apopka 
9.95 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  0 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 260,053 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: Parks/Recreation 

To: Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: PR 
To: I-1 

Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-080 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTY 

58



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  59



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 60



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

61



Page 62 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
3. CHANGE OF ZONING – Owned by the City of Apopka, from PR (Parks/Recreation) to I-1 (Restricted 

Industrial), for property located north of East Cleveland Street, west of Sheeler Avenue. (Parcel ID #: 15-
21-28-0000-00-080) 

  

62



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  November 10, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses Map  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT:   CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 15-21-28-0000-00-080 
 
Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM: PR (PARKS/RECREATION) 
    TO:  I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) (MAX. FAR 0.60) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT/OWNER: City of Apopka 
 
LOCATION:   North of East Cleveland Street, west of Sheeler Avenue 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Parks/Recreation 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) (Note: this Change of Zoning amendment request is 

being processed along with a request to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation from Industrial to Industrial (max FAR 0.60). 

 
ZONING:   PR (Parks/Recreation) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: I-1 (Restricted Industrial) (min. lot area of 15,000 sq. ft.) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Light industrial  
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.95 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  0 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 260,053 Sq. Ft. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2015\City of Apopka\Planning Commission 11 10 15 

 

 
 63



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and the subject parcels are 

vacant.  The City is requesting the I-1 zoning to assure that the property can be sold and developed for light 

industrial. The property comprises approximately 9.95 acres. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 

zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed I-1 rezoning is consistent with the proposed Future 

Land Use Designation of Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) for this property.   Minimum lot size for property assigned 

the I-1 zoning category is 15,000 sq. ft. for light industrial development. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning classification and, 

therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 

  

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 30, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 
PR (Parks/Recreation) to I-1 (Restricted Industrial).  
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 64



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

North (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) and 
Industrial (max FAR 0.60) 

IND-2/IND-3 
(ZIP) 

Light Industrial 

East (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) R-l Vacant 

South (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) PUD Vacant 

West (City) Parks/Recreation PR Vacant (City training site) 

North (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) and 
Industrial (max FAR 0.60) 

IND-2/IND-3 
(ZIP) 

Light Industrial 

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC 
COMPATIBILITY: The parcel is landlocked but the abutting parcel to the southwest is also owned by the 

City of Apopka.  Prior to development of the subject property for industrial purposes, a 
road or driveway must be constructed across the City’s southern parcel to create access 
between Cleveland Street and the subject parcel. 

 
 The zoning application covers approximately 9.95 acres. The property owner intends to 

sell the property for use for light industrial development.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed I-1 zoning is consistent with the Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) Future Land 

Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 
development.  Per Section 2.02.01, Table II-1, of the Land Development Code, I-1 
zoning is one of the acceptable zoning districts allowed within the Industrial Future 
Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 
adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

C-3 DISTRICT  
REQUIREMENTS:  

Maximum Floor Area Ratio: 0.60 

Minimum Site Area: 15,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 
Based on the above zoning standards, the existing 9.95 acre parcels comply with code 
requirements for the I-1 district. 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum 25-foot landscaped 

bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to agricultural uses or districts shall provide a minimum of 
ten feet abutting the property line with landscaping and a six-foot-high masonry wall. 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Any C-3 Commercial District permitted use and light manufacturing of novelties, 
souvenirs, bakery, garments, electrical, precision  instruments or equipment, 
computers, furniture, metal and other similar products. Bus, cab and truck repair, 
dyeing, dry cleaning and laundering.  Machinery sales, machine shops, meat storage, 
cutting and distribution.  Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses 
permitted herein which adhere to the intent of the district.  65



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
City of Apopka 
9.95 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  0 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 260,053 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: Parks/Recreation 

To: Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: PR 
To: I-1 

Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-080 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTY 

66



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

67



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 68



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

69



Page 70 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
4. CHANGE OF ZONING/ MASTER SITE PLAN – Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions LLC, owned by Raynor 

Apopka Land Management, LLC; Engineer is American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E., from 
“County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2), for property located at 100 
& 126 Hermit Smith Road. (Parcel ID #s: 01-21-27-0000-00-026; 01-21-27-0000-00-080) 

  

70



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING     DATE:  November 10, 2015 
          ANNEXATION     FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL     EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:         Vicinity Map 
          Adjacent Zoning Map 
          Adjacent Uses Map 
          Master Plan/Preliminary Dev. Plan 
          Landscape Plan  
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS LLC - CHANGE OF ZONING 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 01-21-27-0000-00-026 & 01-21-27-0000-00-080 
 

Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING FROM 
“COUNTY” I-4 (ZIP) & “CITY” I-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD/I-2); AND RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 
MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN. 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:   Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC 
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER: American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 100 & 126 Hermit Smith Road (Southern terminus of Hermit Smith Road) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land, warehouse, office 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Mulch Operation 
 
TRACT SIZE:   19.4 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 507,038 sq. ft. 
    PROPOSED: 507,038 sq. ft.  
 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director   City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director   Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   

 
 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Rezoning\2015\Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions\Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions ZON PC 11-10-15 71



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 10, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Parcel No. 01-21-27-0000-00-026 was annexed into the City of Apopka on 

November 1, 2006, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1877.  Parcel No. 01-21-27-0000-00-080 was annexed 

into the City of Apopka on February 2, 2005, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1733.   The proposed Change 

of Zoning is being requested by the applicant, Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. 

   

The zoning application covers approximately 19.4 +/- acres.  The property owner intends to use the site for a mulch 

production manufacturing operation.  This use involves the following activities:  heavy outdoor mulching 

equipment, outdoor storage of raw materials, large trucks entering and leaving the property with raw materials 

(removed or harvested trees or tree limbs) or finished product (landscape mulch).  An office use will occur at the 

site for on-site management of operations and for business sales.  The office use is ancillary to the mulch production 

operation.  Based on the storage of outdoor raw material as well as a manufacturing operation that does not occur 

within an enclosed building, the proposed use meets the intent of the I-2 zoning category.   Both parcels have been 

acquired by and under legal ownership of the applicant.  The smaller of the two parcels, Parcel Number 01-21-27-

0000-00-080, is approximately 4.15 acres has not been assigned a City zoning category but currently retains a 

County zoning category of I-4 Industrial.  The County’s I-4 zoning category is similar to the City’s I-2 zoning 

category.  The larger parcel, Parcel Number 01-21-27-0000-00-026, is approximately 15.25 acres and has a City I-

1 zoning assigned to it.  The proposed use does not meet the intent of the I-1 zoning category and requires I-2 

zoning.   

 

The applicant originally sought I-2 zoning for the subject property.  However, the City’s planning staff determined 

that many of the uses proposed under I-2 zoning are too intensive considering the predominant land uses in the 

surrounding area are zoned for I-1, conservation, or agriculture.  However, the mulch production use, as proposed, 

is a use that planning staff considers to be compatible with the surrounding area.  Taking into consideration the 

opinion of the Planning staff, the applicant agreed to apply for a PUD zoning that will limit the use of the subject 

property to only the mulch production operation and any related ancillary uses, as well as any I-1 uses currently 

allowed. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this change of zoning (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

The PUD recommendations are that the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 

Planned Unit Development (PUD\I-2), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following 

Master Plan provisions are subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The zoning and uses permitted within the PUD district for the subject property shall be:   

 

1. Use of the subject property will be limited to the manufacturing and production of mulch with outdoor 

storage of raw materials and with outdoor manufacturing operations.  All outdoor storage and outdoor 

manufacturing operations shall be located within a screened area not visible from adjacent properties or 

streets.  Outdoor mulch manufacturing and the outdoor storage of raw materials are the only I-2 uses 

that are allowed. 

 

2. Any I-1 or C-3 permitted use is allowed. 

 

3. C-2, C-1, CN, or PO/I permitted uses will not be allowed as a primary use.  Any office use shall be 

associated with the industrial activity occurring at the subject site. 72



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 10, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

 

4. Any use of the property other than the permitted uses described above, shall require an amendment to 

the PUD through the zoning process. 

 

5. Overnight parking of trucks or other large vehicles shall only occur within the boundaries of the Master 

Site Plan and within areas so designated on said Plan.  No overnight parking of trucks will be allowed 

within the office parking lots.  No parking of any vehicle will occur within any roadway easement 

running within the subject property or abutting the eastern property line. 

 

6. Outdoor storage of raw materials shall only occur at approved locations denoted within the Master Site 

Plan. 

 

7. All mulching equipment shall only be placed in the areas denoted on the Master Site Plan. 

 

8. No parking of any vehicle or truck or outdoor storage shall occur within any landscape buffer area 

appearing on the Master Site Plan. 

 

B. Development standards and conditions required of any development within the PUD district for the subject 

property shall be: 

 

1.  Building elevations will be provided at time of a Final Development Plan application. 

 

2. Maximum height of any building, mulch conveyor belts, manufacturing equipment, raw material piles 

are not to exceed thirty-five feet from the finished ground level. 

 

3. All perimeter landscape areas shall be protected from vehicle encroachment by curbing or wheel stops. 

    

C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within two 

years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. 

At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Preliminary Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master Plan 

provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

4. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the I-1 zoning standards will apply 

to the subject property. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) zoning 

designation is consistent with the Industrial (0.60 FAR) future land use designation and the proposed use of the 

property.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Because this change of zoning represents a change to a non-residential 

designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 

 73



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 10, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public 

hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on September 11, 2015. 

 

WAIVERS:  The applicant has proposed the below waiver requests (which appear on the cover sheet of the Master 

Plan).  As the applicant has applied for a PUD zoning, these waiver requests will be listed as Development Standards 

approved for the subject property.  Thus, the below waivers are considered to be additional development standards 

that will be incorporated in the PUD ordinance, unless specifically amended or denied by City Council. 

 

1. LDC, Section 2.02.15. G.1. - Areas adjacent to all roads shall provide eight (8) foot masonry wall within a 

minimum 25-foot landscaped bufferyard.   Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a 10-foot landscaped 

bufferyard due to the easement in lieu of a road abuts the eastern property line and a fence will provide a 

black or green vinyl coated chain link fence adjacent property to zoned I-1.  

 

2. LDC, Section 2.02.15. G.2. - Areas adjacent to agricultural districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall 

within a minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a 10-foot 

landscaped bufferyard with a 6-foot chain link fence.  The justifications for the request is due to the property 

to the west containing vegetation from a fern growing operating that blocks the view; and the property to the 

north is a citrus grove with a dense 6-foot hedge.  The chain link fence will be green or black vinyl coated. 

  

3. LDC, Section 2.02.15. G.3. - Areas adjacent to residential districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall 

within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a 30-foot 

buffer with a 6-foot chain link along the property line to the north because the adjacent land is owned by 

the Applicant and is intended to be rezoning to I-1.  Additionally, the Applicant is requesting a waiver to 

allow a 20-foot buffer along the southern property line because the adjacent property is a borrow pit that is 

not conducive to residential use. The chain link fence will be green or black vinyl coated. 

 

4. LDC, Section 2.02.15.G.2. – A 6’foot high masonry wall is required adjacent to a citrus grove and is not 

anticipated to develop as residential.  No public access is near this area and will not be highly visible.  The 

chain link fence will be green or black vinyl coated. 

 

5. LCD, Section 2.02.15.G.3. – A 20 foot buffer and a 6-foot high masonry wall is required adjacent to residen-

tial zoned property.  The abutting residential-zoned parcel is owned by Raynor Shine LLC, and the access 

drive crosses that parcel.  RaynorShine plans to rqeuest to  rezone that parcel to Office or Industrial use in 

the future. 

 

Staff does not object to any of the above waiver requests, and will incorporate these waivers as devel-

opment standards within the PUD zoning ordinance. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 10, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

November 18, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 1st Reading 

December 2, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

September 25, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

November 6, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/map 

  

74



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 10, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission address to separate actions for this case – one for the PUD\I-2 

zoning and another for the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

1. The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and recommends approval of the change in zoning from “County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” 

Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) for the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. 

 

2.  The Development Review Committee finds the proposed Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan 

to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommends approval of 

the Master Site Plan\preliminary Development Plan subject to the development standards and conditions 

recommended in the staff report, for the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

75



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 10, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (1 du/10 ac/Agricultural) A-1 vacant 

East (City) Industrial (0.60 FAR) I-4 warehouse\trucking business 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) Mixed-EC vacant 

West (County) Rural (1 du/10 ac/Agricultural) A-1 warehouse 

 

LAND USE &  

TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The Property has access to a Hermit Smith Road through an access easement 

that the property owner has demonstrated rights thereto.  Hermit Smith Road 

allows for easy access to a regional highway that leads to U.S. 441 and 

429/S.R. 451.   

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) zoning is consistent with 

the City’s Industrial Future Land Use Designation. Development plans shall 

not exceed the density allowed under the adopted future land use designation. 

 

PUD/I-2 DISTRICT  

REQUIREMENTS:  The PUD describes the development standards that apply. The I-1 

development standards are listed below. 

Minimum Site Area: 12,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width: 150 ft. 

Setbacks:        Front: 25 ft. from property line 

 

                       Rear: 10 ft., except where rear lot lines abut a residential 

district, then all structures shall be set back a 

minimum of 30 feet or a distance equivalent to 

any required bufferyard, whichever is greater.  

 

                       Side: 10 ft. from property line or a distance equivalent 

to any required bufferyard, whichever is greater. 

All yards adjacent to road rights-of-way shall be 

a minimum of 25 feet. 

 

Zero Lot Lines: Rear yards and side yards may be reduced to zero 

when the rear or side property lines abut the 

boundary of a railroad right-of-way, but only in 

those cases where an adjacent wall or walls of a 

building or structure are provided with railroad 

loading and unloading capabilities.  

  

 
76



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 10, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

BUFFER-YARD  

REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide eight (8) foot masonry 

wall within a minimum 25-foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent to 

agricultural districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a 

minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to residential 

districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a minimum of 50-

foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent to nonresidential, non-I-2 

industrial uses or districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a 

minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. I-2 uses occurring adjacent to 

existing I-2 districts or uses shall be required to provide a ten-foot landscaped 

bufferyard.  

 

ALLOWABLE USES:  The only I-2 use that is allowed through the PUD\I-2 zoning is outdoor mulch 

operation and outdoor storage of raw materials. 

 

Any use permitted in the I-1 District. Bus, cab and truck storage and terminals. 

Building material and contractor's storage, equipment yards and sales. 

Machinery storage.  Bulk storage of petroleum.  Asphalt (or similar petroleum 

product), cement, lime, gypsum or plaster of paris or concrete manufacturing, 

mixing or refining or the open storage of raw materials or finished products 

related to such manufacture.  Blast furnace or similar heat or glare-generating 

operations.  Corrosive acid manufacture or bulk storage, including, but not 

limited to, hydrochloric, nitric, sulfuric or similar acids.  Fertilizer 

manufacturing and processing.  Junk, salvage or wrecking yard or structure 

wherein motor vehicles, appliances or similar use equipment or materials are 

stored, dismantled or store for display, sale or packing; provided, all open 

storage and processing activities are enclosed within a wall or structure.  

Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted herein 

which adhere to the intent of the district and which are not prohibited as 

specified in this Code. Use determination shall be based upon the community 

development director's recommendation.  

 

  

77



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 10, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

Raynor Shine Recycling Services, Inc. 
19.4 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 507,038 sq. ft. 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 507,038 sq. ft. 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” I-4 (ZIP) & “City” I-1 

To: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) 
Parcel ID #s: 01-21-217-0000-00-026 & 01-21-217-0000-00-080 

 

          

VICINITY MAP 
 
 

 
 

  

Subject Property 

78



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 10, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

  

Subject Property 

79



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 10, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

80



 

 

 

  

81



 

  

82



 

 

83



Page 84 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
5. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Owned by 

Technology Property, LLC; applicant is Robinson Forges Realty International, c/o Lou Forges, from 
“County” Rural (0-1 du/5 ac) to “City” Commercial (Max. FAR 0.25), for property located west of Clarcona 
Road, south of West Keene Road. (Parcel ID #s: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; 27-21-28-6024-00-006; 27-21-28-
6024-00-007) 

  

84



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  November 10, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 
SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; -006; -007 
 

Request:   COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE 
    FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
    FROM: “COUNTY” RURAL (0-1 DU/5 AC) 
    TO:  “CITY” COMMERCIAL (MAX. FAR 0.25) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT:   Lou Forges – Robinson Forges Realty International 
 
OWNER:   Technology Property LLC 
 
LOCATION: West of Clarcona Rd, south of West Keene Rd 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” PID (ZIP)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Wholesale Commercial 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City” C-3 (Wholesale Commercial)(Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map 
designation from “County” PD (ZIP) to “City” C-3.) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   9.4 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 Units 
    PROPOSED: 102,366 Sq. Ft. 
 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director   City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director   Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   

 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Small Scale\2015\Technology Property LLC – Clarcona Rd – FLU PC 11 10 15 85



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

TECHOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject properties have not yet been assigned a “City” Future 

Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future land use 

designation of Commercial to the properties.  

 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on August 5, 2015, through the adoption of Ordinance 

No. 2439.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  

Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-scale 

amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Commercial is compatible with the designations assigned 

to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 9.4 acres. The property owner intends to use 

the site for eventual wholesale commercial development.    

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 

the Commercial Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed C-3 Zoning classification.  Site 

development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning classification and, 

therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary because the proposed future land use 

designation will not generate any new residential units.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 30, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and  recommends approval of the change in Future 
Land Use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/5 ac) to “City” Commercial (max FAR 0.25) for the properties owned by 
Technology Property LLC. 
 

Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

86



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

TECHOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

                                                                                                                                                                          

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) A-1 Single-family home 

East (City) Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) AG Container nursery 

South (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) PD RV park 

West (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) PD RV park 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of 
wholesale commercial uses.  The property lies south of West Keene Rd and west of Clarcona Rd. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study Area, the 
subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 
the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts Clarcona Rd.  The vegetative communities 
present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and the terrain has a 
0-5 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.i Commercial 
Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 
designation for the Property is Commercial (max FAR 0.25).  Based on the housing element of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   
 
 
 87



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

TECHOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (City designation): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): N/A 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 
is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject properties are located within the 
Orange County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  The property owner 
will need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available capacity prior to submittal of 
any development plan.  
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  4 lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  2 lbs./person/day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.003 AC 88



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

TECHOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

89



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

TECHOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

Technology Property LLC 
9.4 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 102, 366 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

To: “City” Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” PD (ZIP) 

To: “City” C-3 
Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; -006; -007 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

90



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

TECHOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  

91



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

TECHOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 92



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

TECHOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

93



Page 94 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
6. CHANGE OF ZONING – Owned by Technology Property, LLC; applicant is Robinson Forges Realty 

International, c/o Lou Forges, from “County” P-D (ZIP) to “City” C-3 (Wholesale Commercial), for property 
located west of Clarcona Road, south of West Keene Road. (Parcel ID #s: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; 27-21-
28-6024-00-006; 27-21-28-6024-00-007) 

  

94



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  November 10, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:          Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses Map  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT:   TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; -006; -007 
 
Request:   CHANGE OF ZONING 
    FROM: “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) 
    TO:  “CITY” C-3 (WHOLESALE COMMERCIAL) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT:   Lou Forges – Robinson Forges Realty International 
 
OWNER:   Technology Property LLC 
 
LOCATION:   West of Clarcona Rd, south of West Keene Rd 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: “County” Rural (0-1 du/5 ac) 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: “City” Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) (Note: this Change of Zoning amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation from “County” PD (ZIP) to “City” Commercial (max FAR 0.25). 

 
ZONING:   “County” P-D (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” C-3 (Wholesale Commercial) (min. lot area of 12,000 sq. ft.) 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Wholesale Commercial 
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.4 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 102,366 sq. ft. 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2015\Technology Property LLC\Planning Commission 11 10 15 
95



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject properties have not yet been assigned a “City” Future 

Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning category 

of C-3 to the properties.  

 

The subject properties were annexed into the City of Apopka on August 5, 2015, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2439.  The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and 

the subject parcels are vacant.  The applicant has requested the C-3 zoning to assure that the property can be 

developed for wholesale commercial. The property comprises approximately 9.4 acres. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate City of Apopka public facilities exist 

to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report).  The subject properties are located within the Orange 

County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  The property owner will 

need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available capacity prior to submittal of any 

development plan. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed C-3 rezoning is consistent with the proposed Future 

Land Use Designation of Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) for this property.   Minimum lot size for property assigned 

the C-3 zoning category is 12,000 sq. ft. for commercial development, and the site far exceeds this area with 

approximately 9.4 acres. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning classification and, 

therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 

  

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 30, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, rcommending approval of the change in Zoning 
“County” PD (ZIP) to “City” C-3 (Wholesale Commercial) for the properties owned by Technology Property 
LLC. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 96



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

North (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) A-1 Single-family home 

East (City) Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) AG Container nursery 

South (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) PD RV park (Jelly Stone RV Park\Clarcona Resort) 

West (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) PD RV park (Jelly Stone RV Park\Clarcona Resort) 

North (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) A-1 Single-family home 

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC 
COMPATIBILITY:  The subject property fronts a minor arterial (Clarcona Road).  Current access occurs on a 

temporary basis from the RV park.  Future development of the site will likely require a 
change in the access to a driveway connecting the subject property directly to Clarcona Road. 

 
 The zoning application covers approximately 9.4 acres. The property owner intends to use 

the property for future wholesale commercial. 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed C-3 zoning is consistent with the Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) Future Land 

Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 
development.  Per Section 2.02.01, Table II-1, of the Land Development Code, C-3 zoning 
is one of the acceptable zoning districts allowed within the Residential Low Density Future 
Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 
adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

C-3 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

 
Based otThe above zoning standards, the existing 9.4 acre parcels comply with code 
requirements for the C-3 district. 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum ten-foot landscaped buff-

eryard.  Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or districts shall provide a mini-
mum six-foot-high masonry wall within a ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Any use permitted in the C-2 General Commercial District, as well as heating and air 
conditioning sales, building material storage and sales, contractor’s storage and equipment 
yards, mechanical garage, automobile body and painting shops. Trade shops and schools, 
truck stops, fruit packaging and processing facilities when accessory to retail fruit sale on-
site.  Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted herein which adhere 
to the intent of the district. 

  

Maximum Floor Area Ratio: 0.25 

Minimum Site Area: 12,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Rear: 15 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Side: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Corner 15 ft. 

97



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
 

Technology Property LLC 
9.4 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 102,366 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

To: “City” Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” PD (ZIP) 

To: “City” C-3 
Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; -006; -007 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

98



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

99



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 100



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 10, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

101


	Top
	1 11-10-15 - PC - Approval of Regular Minutes - October 13, 2015
	PC 10-13-15 Minutes.pdf

	2 11-10-15 - PC - Approval of Special Minutes - October 28, 2105
	PC 10-28-15 Sp Minutes.pdf

	1. 11-10-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Diane Reid-Goolsby; Debra Reid-Wilbarger; Daniel Joshua Reid, west of Plymouth Sorrento Rd, south of West Kelly Park Rd
	1 Reid-Goolsby &amp; Reid-Wilbarger - Plymouth Sorrento Rd LS FLUM  - PC 11-10-15.pdf
	2 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Pages  6,7,8 &amp; 9.pdf
	3 Future Land Use Element_Policy 18.pdf
	4 JPA 2nd Amend_Signed.pdf

	2. 11-10-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - City of Apopka, north of East Cleveland St, west of Sheeler Ave
	City of Apopka - E Cleveland St -  FLU - PC 11 10 15.pdf

	3. 11-10-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - City of Apopka, north of East Cleveland St, west of Sheeler Ave
	1 City of Apopka - E Cleveland St - ZON - PC 11 10 15.pdf

	4. 11-10-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions LLC - PUD Master Plan, 100 &amp; 126 Hermit Smith Rd
	1 Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions PC 11-10-15.pdf
	2 Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions Master Plan_Landscape Plan.pdf

	5. 11-10-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Technology Property, LLC, west of Clarcona Rd, south of West Keene Rd
	Technology Property LLC - Clarcona Rd -  FLU - PC 11 10 15.pdf

	6. 11-10-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Technology Property, LLC, west of Clarcoa Rd, south of West Keene Rd
	Technology Property LLC - Clarcona Rd - ZON - PC 11 10 15.pdf

	Bottom

